
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 10th December, 2014 
 

10.00 am 
 

Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, 
Maidstone 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



 

 



 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE 

 
 

Wednesday, 10th December, 2014, at 10.00 
am 

Ask for: Andrew Tait 
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County 
Hall, Maidstone 

Telephone: 03000 416749 
   

Tea/Coffee will be available from 9:30 outside the meeting room 
 

Membership (19) 
 
Conservative (10): Mr J A  Davies (Chairman), Mr C P Smith (Vice-Chairman), 

Mr M J Angell, Mr M A C Balfour, Mr T Gates, Mr S C Manion, 
Mr R J Parry, Mr C Simkins, Mrs P A V Stockell and 
Mr J N Wedgbury 
 

UKIP (4) Mr M Baldock, Mr L Burgess, Mr T L Shonk and Mr A Terry 
 

Labour (3) Mrs P Brivio, Mr T A Maddison and Mrs E D Rowbotham 
 

Liberal Democrat (1): Mr I S Chittenden 
 

Independents (1)  Mr P M Harman 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public 

 
A.   COMMITTEE BUSINESS 
1. Substitutes  
2. Declarations of Interests by Members in items on the Agenda for this meeting.  
3. Minutes - 19 November 2014 (Pages 5 - 12) 
4. Site Meetings and Other Meetings  
B. GENERAL MATTERS 
C.  MINERALS AND WASTE DISPOSAL APPLICATIONS 
D.  DEVELOPMENTS TO BE CARRIED OUT BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL 
1. Proposal TH/14/0826 (KCC/TH/0281/2014) - Construction of a new artificial sports 

pitch and alterations to existing multi-use games area (MUGA) at Ursuline College, 
Canterbury Road, Westgate-on-Sea; Governors of Ursuline College (Pages 13 - 
28) 

E.  COUNTY MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 



 

 

1. County matter applications (Pages 29 - 32) 
2. County Council developments  
3. Screening opinions under Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 

Assessment) Regulations 2011  
4. Scoping opinions under Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 

Assessment) Regulations 2011  (None)  
F.  OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT 
 

EXEMPT ITEMS 
(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 

which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public) 

Peter Sass 
Head of Democratic Services  
(01622) 694002 
 
Tuesday, 2 December 2014 
 
(Please note that the background documents referred to in the accompanying papers may 
be inspected by arrangement with the Departments responsible for preparing the report.  
Draft conditions concerning applications being recommended for permission, reported in 
section D, are available to Members in the Members’ Lounge.) 



 
 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 
PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Planning Applications Committee held in the Council 
Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Wednesday, 19 November 
2014. 
 
PRESENT: Mr J A  Davies (Chairman), Mr C P Smith (Vice-Chairman), 
Mr M Baldock, Mr M A C Balfour, Mrs P Brivio, Mr L Burgess, Mr N J D Chard 
(Substitute for Mr M J Angell), Mr I S Chittenden, Mr T Gates, Mr P M Harman, 
Mrs S V Hohler (Substitute for Mrs P A V Stockell), Mr T A Maddison, 
Mr S C Manion, Mr R J Parry, Mrs E D Rowbotham, Mr T L Shonk, Mr C Simkins, 
Mr A Terry and Mr J N Wedgbury 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mr F McKenna, Mr R Truelove and Mr M E Whybrow 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mrs S Thompson (Head of Planning Applications Group), 
Mr J Crossley (Principal Planning Officer - County Council Development), Mr A Pigott 
(Strategic Transport and Development Planner) and Mr A Tait (Democratic Services 
Officer) 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 

80. Minutes - 22 October 2014  
(Item A3) 
 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 22 October 2014 are correctly 
recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman.  
 

81. Proposal SW/14/500739 (KCC/SW/0189/2014) - Expansion of Iwade Primary 
School from 2 FE to 3FE, including a two-storey extension to the existing 
school building, new access via School Lane and additional parking spaces 
together with new hard and soft landscaping at Iwade  Primary School, School 
Lane, Iwade; KCC Property and Infrastructure Support  
(Item D1) 
 
(1)   Mr R Truelove was present for this item pursuant to Committee Procedure 
Rule 2.27 and spoke.  
 
(2)  the Head of Planning Applications Group undertook to ensure that the cycle 
rack would be sheltered.  
 
(3)  Mr I S Chittenden moved, seconded by Mr M Baldock that consideration of this 
application be deferred to enable further consideration of the highways issues.  
 
(4)  Following discussion and with the agreement of the Committee, Mr Chittenden 
withdrew the motion set out in (3) above.  
 
(5)  The Committee agreed to accept the following amendments to the 
recommendations of the Head of Planning Applications Group:-  

Page 5

Agenda Item A3



 
 
Amended condition on Travel Plan  
 
Prior to the occupation of the classroom accommodation, an updated travel plan shall 
be submitted for the written approval of the County Planning Authority. The Travel 
Plan shall review whether any local parking restrictions are necessary to assist travel 
movement during peak time, in addition to encouraging sustainable travel and 
responsible parking behaviour by parents.  It shall also include measures for effective 
engagement between school, parents, the local community and the local  Joint 
Transport Board and shall be reviewed on an ongoing basis, the first taking place 6 
months from occupation of the classroom accommodation hereby approved.  The 
Travel Plan shall be reviewed on a 6 monthly basis thereafter. 
 
Additional Condition 
 
Prior to occupation of the classroom accommodation, a Local Traffic Management 
Plan shall be submitted for the written approval of the County Planning Authority.  
The Local Traffic Management Plan shall review the existing situation in detail and 
propose robust solution/on street restrictions in close proximity to the School shall.  
Such a Plan shall demonstrate engagement with the local community and the local 
Joint Transport Board. 
 
(6)   Pursuant to Committee Procedure Rule 2.26 (4), one third of the voting 
Members present required that the way all Members cast their vote should be 
recorded in the Minutes.  
 
(7)  The Chairman put the recommendations of the Head of Planning Applications 
Group as amended in (5) above to the vote when the voting was as follows: 
 
For (14) 
 
Mr M Balfour, Mrs P Brivio, Mr N Chard, Mr I Chittenden, Mr J Davies, Mr T Gates, 
Mr P Harman, Mrs S Hohler, Mr T Maddison, Mr R Parry, Mrs E Rowbotham, Mr C 
Simkins, Mr C Smith, Mr J Wedgbury,  
 
Against (3) 
 
Mr M Baldock, Mr L Burgess, Mr T Shonk.  
 
Abstain (1) 
 
Mr A Terry 
                  Motion Carried  
 
(8)  RESOLVED that:-  
 

(a) permission be granted to the proposal subject to conditions, including 
conditions covering   the standard 5 year time limit for implementation; 
the development being carried out in accordance with the permitted 
details; the submission of details of all materials to be used externally; 
the  submission  of  a  scheme  of  landscaping  reflecting  the  local  
landscape character, including hard surfacing, its implementation and 

Page 6



 
maintenance; the  development proceeding  with  adequate  measures  
to  protect  those trees  to  be retained; the  provision  of a replacement  
hard  play  area  prior  to  first  occupation  of  the development; the 
submission of a method statement for avoidance of impacts on 
reptiles and amphibians, as specified by the County Council’s 
Biodiversity Officer;  the development proceeding with no tree removal 
during the bird breeding season; the carrying out of the proposed 
development according with the recommendations of the submitted 
ecological surveys and the further  recommendations of  the County 
Council’s Biodiversity Officer; prior to the occupation of the classroom 
accommodation, an updated travel plan shall be submitted for the 
written approval of the County Planning Authority. The Travel Plan shall 
review whether any local parking restrictions are necessary to assist 
travel movement during peak time, in addition to encouraging 
sustainable travel and responsible parking behaviour by parents.  It 
shall also include measures for effective engagement between school, 
parents, the local community and the local Joint Transport Board and 
shall be reviewed on an ongoing basis, the first taking place 6 months 
from occupation of the classroom accommodation hereby approved.  
The Travel Plan shall be reviewed on a 6 monthly basis thereafter; the 
provision and retention of vehicular and pedestrian access points, car 
parking and sheltered cycle parking prior to first occupation of the 
development; the vehicular entrance gates being hung to open away 
from the highway only and being set back a minimum distance of 5.5 
metres from the carriageway edge; the provision and retention of 
visibility splays; the   proposed   development   according   with   
requirements   relating   to   any contaminated land;  hours of working 
during construction and demolition being restricted to between 0800 and 
1800 on Mondays to Fridays and between the hours of 0900 and 
1300 on Saturdays, with no operations on Sundays and Bank Holidays; 
the submission of a construction management strategy, including 
access, lorry routing, parking and circulation within the site for 
contractor’s and other vehicles related to construction and demolition 
operations; measures being adopted to prevent mud and debris being 
taken onto the public highway; and prior to occupation of the classroom 
accommodation, a Local Traffic Management Plan shall be submitted 
for the written approval of the County Planning Authority.  The Local 
Traffic Management Plan shall review the existing situation in detail and 
propose robust solution/on street restrictions in close proximity to the 
School shall.  Such a Plan shall demonstrate engagement with the local 
community and the local Joint Transport Board; and  

 
(b) the  applicant  be advised by Informative that: - 

 
(i) with regard to the requirement to prepare and submit a 

(revised/amended) School Travel Plan, the applicant is advised to 
register with Kent County Council's Travel Plan Management 
system “Jambusters” (a county wide initiative aiding Schools in 
the preparation and ongoing monitoring of School Travel Plans);  

 
(ii) their attention is drawn to the letter from Highways and 

Transportation in which it is noted that it is the responsibility of 
the applicant to ensure that all necessary highway approvals and 

Page 7



 
consents where required are obtained; and 

 
(iii) with  regard  to  the  required  landscaping  scheme,  Swale  

Borough  Council’s Landscape Character Supplementary 
Planning Document must be used to inform the design and 
species choice, and to ensure enhancements are made where 
possible;  

 
(iv) the brash pile and grass clipping pile situated to the east of the 

proposed car park area should be retained as additional wildlife 
features within the site. If removal of the piles is required, advice 
from a suitably experienced and great crested newt-licensed 
ecologist must be sought to ensure that the removal does not 
result in offences against protected species; and 

 
(v) their attention is drawn to the letter from Public Rights of Way 

which contains general Informatives with regard to works 
adjacent to and/or on a Public  Right of Way. It is also advised 
that ‘the granting of planning permission confers on the 
developer no other permission or consent or right to close or 
divert any Public Right of Way at any time without the express 
permission of the Highways Authority. 

 
82. Proposal SH/14/0694 (KCC/SH/0151/2014) - 1FE primary School , including two-

storey school building,hard and soft playing pitches, vehicular and pedestrian 
access ways, on-site drop off area, parking and cycle parking provision, 
landscaping and the retention of the existing MUGA at St Mary's Playing Field, 
Warren Way, Folkestone; KCC Property and Infrastructure Support.  
(Item D2) 
 
(1)   Mr F McKenna and Mr M Whybrow were present for this item pursuant to 
Committee Procedure Rule 2.27 and spoke.  
 
(2)  Mrs M Lawes and Mr S Plumstead spoke as representatives of local 
residents in opposition to the proposal.  Mr D Adams (KCC Education and Young 
People’s Services) spoke in reply.  
 
(3)  The Head of Planning Applications Group reported correspondence from the 
Kent County Playing Fields Association supporting the objection from Sport 
England.  
 
(4)  The recommendations of the Head of Planning Applications Group were 
amended so that the site and sports facilities would be available for community 
use/hire between 5.30pm and 9.00 pm on weekdays and between 9.30 am and 5.30 
pm at weekends.  The site would also be available from 8am to 5pm on weekdays 
provided that this did not conflict with the School’s operational requirements 
 
(5)  On being put to the vote, the recommendations of the Head of Planning 
Applications Group were agreed (as amended in (4) above) by 11 votes to 6.  
 
(6)  Mr M Baldock requested pursuant to Committee Procedure Rule 2.26 (3) that 
his vote against the proposal be recorded.  
 
(7)  RESOLVED that:-  

Page 8



 
  

(a) the application be referred to the Secretary of State for Communities 
and Local Government and subject to his decision, permission be 
granted to the proposal subject to conditions, including conditions 
covering  the standard five year time limit; the development being 
carried out in accordance with the permitted details; a management plan 
for the areas of ecological enhancement; a  scheme  of   landscaping,  
including  hard  surfacing,  its  implementation  and maintenance; 
details of fencing; measures to minimise the risk of crime; details of a 
surface water drainage scheme; works being carried out in accordance 
with the agreed reptile mitigation strategy; a management plan for the 
areas of ecological enhancement; a detailed lighting strategy for prior 
approval, including the prohibition of floodlighting; a programme of 
archaeological works; arboricultural works being carried out in 
accordance with the British Standard; tree protection measures; a 
School Travel Plan being submitted after six months of occupation; a 
Road Traffic Order being sought to extend parking restrictions on 
Warren Way; the provision of parking facilities for site personnel and 
visitors prior to commencement of work on site and for the duration of 
construction;  measures to prevent the discharge of surface water 
from the accesses onto the highway; the provision   and   permanent   
retention   of   the   vehicle   parking   spaces,   vehicle 
loading/unloading and turning facilities and cycle parking facilities;  
provision and maintenance of the visibility splays shown on the 
submitted plans with no obstructions over 0.6 metres above the 
carriageway level within the splays;  completion and maintenance of the 
accesses; hours of working during construction and demolition being 
restricted to between 0800 and 1800 on Mondays to Fridays and 
between the hours of 0900 and 1300 on Saturdays, with no operations 
on Sundays and Bank Holidays; a construction  management  strategy,  
including  access,  lorry  routing,  parking  and circulation within the 
site for contractor’s and other vehicles related to construction and 
demolition operations; measures to prevent mud and debris being taken 
onto the public highway; and the site and sports facilities being available 
for community use/hire between 5.30 pm and 9.00 pm on weekdays and 
between 9.30 am and 5.30 pm at weekends, as well as being available 
from 8 am to 5 pm on weekdays provided that this does not conflict with 
the School’s operational requirements; and 

 
(b)    the applicant  be advised by Informative that:-  
 

(i) it is the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that before the 
development is commenced, all necessary highway approvals 
and consents are obtained and that the limits of highway 
boundary are clearly established in order to avoid any 
enforcement action being taken by the Highway Authority. The 
applicant must also ensure that the details shown on the 
approved plans agree in every aspect with those approved under 
such legislation and common law. It is therefore important for the 
applicant to contact KCC Highways and Transportation to 
progress this aspect of the works prior to commencement on site. 
Planning permission does not convey any approval for 
construction of the required vehicular crossing, or any other 
works within the highway for which a statutory licence must be 
obtained;  

 
Page 9



 
(ii) no furniture may be erected on or across Public Rights of Way 

without the express consent of the Highway Authority.  There 
must be no disturbance to the surface of the right of way, or 
obstruction of its use, either during or following any approved 
development. The granting of planning permission confers on the 
developer no other permission or consent or right to close or 
divert any Public Right of Way at any time without the express 
permission of the highway Authority;  

 
(iii) it is advised to register  with Kent County Council's Travel Plan 

Management system ‘Jambusters’; and  
 

(iv) there should be no mechanical excavations taking place above or 
within 0.5m of the low pressure system, 0.5m of the medium 
pressure system and 3m of the intermediate pressure system. The 
applicant should, where required, confirm the position of mains 
using a hand dug trial hole. A colour copy of the plans and the gas 
safety advice booklet should be passed to the senior person on 
site in order to prevent damage to the plant.  

 
 

83. Proposal DA/14/948 (KCC/DA/0029/2014) - Demolition of existing dining hall 
and kitchen with the erection of a two-storey 6 classroom block with 
associated ancillary accommodation; new single storey dining hall and 
kitchen. Provision of 33 additional car parking spaces and new access with 
drop-off facility from Eynsford Road at Knockhall Primary School, Eynsford 
Road, Greenhithe; KCC Property and Infrastructure Support  
(Item D3) 
 
(1)   The Head of Planning Applications Group reported a request from Swanscombe and 
Greenhithe TC requesting the inclusion of a condition requiring a parking and safety survey 
after 6 months. She advised that this request was best covered by requiring a review of the 
School Travel Plan every six months.  This was agreed.   
 
(2)  RESOLVED that:-  

(a) permission be granted to the  proposal subject to conditions, including 
conditions covering the standard 5 year time limit; the development 
being carried out in accordance with the permitted details; the 
submission and approval of details of all materials to be used externally; 
the submission and approval of revised details of car parking and 
vehicular accesses, showing aisle widths of 6 metres, and showing 
proposed signage including “ENTRANCE” on the western access and 
“EXIT” on the eastern access; the provision and retention of the vehicle 
parking spaces; the submission and approval of an updated School 
Travel Plan within 6 months of occupation of the classroom block, its 
implementation and on-going six-monthly review; a programme of 
archaeological work being submitted and approved; any p r o p o s e d  
changes to the existing lighting b e i n g  designed to be sensitive to 
bat use of the site;  the development being undertaken in accordance 
with the recommendations of the Ecological Survey and protected 
species surveys; no vegetation clearance taking place during the bird 
breeding season; the submission and approval of a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan; the submission and approval of an 
Ecological Design Strategy; the submission and approval of a scheme 
of landscaping;  the submission and approval of a Tree Protection 
Plan and the development being undertaken in accordance with the 

Page 10



 
recommendations of the Tree Survey;  the submission and approval of 
an Arboricultural Method Statement explaining how the construction 
would be carried out with regard to the retained trees; the inclusion of 
tree protection measures; the submission and approval of a detailed 
design for a Sustainable Urban Drainage System scheme to improve 
drainage in the vicinity of the parents’ drop-off facility; no infiltration of 
surface water drainage;  the  submission  and  approval  of  a  
Construction  Management  Strategy,  including methods  and  hours  
of  working,  location  of  site  compounds  and  operative/visitors’ 
facilities, details of how the site access would be managed to avoid 
peak school times, and details of any construction accesses as well as 
an undertaking that no heavy goods vehicles  are  to  reverse  into  or  
out  of  the  site  unless  under  the  supervision of  a banksman; 
measures to prevent mud and debris being deposited onto the public 
highway; and hours of working during construction and demolition 
being restricted to between 0800 and 1800 on Mondays to Fridays 
and between the hours of 0900 and 1300 on Saturdays, with no 
operations on Sundays and Bank Holidays; and  

(b)    the applicant be advised by informative that:-  
(i)    the School should advise parents to use a voluntary one-way 

system north to south along Eynsford Road;  
(ii)  the granting of planning permission does not convey any 

approval for construction of the new vehicle crossover (i.e. 
dropped kerb) or any other works in the highway or affecting it. A 
licence must be obtained for such works. The Applicant should 
contact Kent County Council Highways and Transportation at  
www.kent.gov.uk/roads_and_transport/highway_improvements/pa
rking/dropped_kerbs.aspx telephone: 0300 418181) in order to 
obtain the necessary Application Pack. Please allow at least eight 
weeks’ notice; and 

(iii)   if contamination is found, the developer should address risks to 
controlled waters from contamination at the site, following the 
requirements of the NPPF and the Environment Agency’s (EA) 
Guiding Principles for Land Contamination.  The EA recommends 
that developers should follow the risk management framework 
provided in CLR11 Model Procedures for the Management of 
Land Contamination when dealing with land affected by 
contamination. The EA also recommends that they should refer to 
the EA’s Guiding Principles for land contamination for the type of 
information that they require in order to assess risks to controlled 
waters from the site. The Local Authority can advise on risk to 
other receptors, such as human health. Further information can be 
gained from the Environment Agency’s website at: 
www.gov.uk/government/organisations/environment-agency. 

 
84. County matters dealt with under delegated powers  

(Item E1) 
 
RESOLVED to note matters dealt with under delegated powers since the last 
meeting relating to:-  
 

(a) County matter applications;  

Page 11



 
 

(b) County Council developments;  
 
(c) Screening Opinions under the Town and Country Planning 

(Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations) 2011; and  
 
(d) Scoping Opinions under the Town and Country Planning 

(Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations) 2011 (None).  
 
 

Page 12



Item D1 
New artificial sports pitch and alterations to MUGA at 
Ursuline College, Westgate-On-Sea TH/14/0826 
(KCC/TH/0281/2014) 

 
 
A report by Head of Planning Applications Group to Planning Applications Committee on 10 
December 2014. 
 
Application by Ursuline College for the construction of a new artificial sports pitch and 
alterations to existing Multi Use Games Area (MUGA) at Ursuline College, 225 Canterbury 
Road, Westgate-On-Sea, Kent – TH/14/0826 (KCC/TH/0281/2014) 
 
Recommendation: Permission be granted subject to conditions.  
 
Local Member:  Mr Jeffrey Elenor                                               Classification: Unrestricted 

 

D1.1 

Site 
 
1. Ursuline College, a Voluntary Aided Roman Catholic co-educational secondary 

comprehensive school, is located on the southern side of Canterbury Road (A28) in 
Westgate-On-Sea.  The school has a pupil roll of circa 770 students and 104 members 
of staff, with the catchment area extending beyond the immediate Thanet area. 

 
2. The school site extends southwards from the dual carriageway, and comprises a 

mixture of the old traditional school buildings and new purpose built classrooms and a 
very modern sports hall, (along with a chapel, convent and nursing home).  Access into 
the site is from the A28 only, with separate entrance and exit points, and the school is 
well served by public transport along this road. 

 
3. At the very southern end of the school site (south of the sports hall) lies the existing 

MUGA and an area of grassed play space.  That part of the site is bordered by 
residential streets - Ursuline Drive and The Warren Drive bound the existing MUGA and 
Linksfield Road and Golden Close run along the boundary of the grassed play space.  
An emergency access track enters the school site at the junction of Linksfield Road and 
The Warren Drive.  The access is gated (and locked) with green wire mesh fencing 
which then runs along the remainder of this boundary, fronting Linksfield Road, with 
mature trees and hedging along its length as well. 

 
4. The existing MUGA is enclosed by 3m (9.8 feet) high fencing, which runs along the 

boundary of the neighbouring properties, and extends to 5m (16.4 feet) in height 
adjoining the southern elevation of the sports hall. 

 
Background 
 
5. In 2012 Members considered a similar planning application submitted by Ursuline 

College, for a new artificial sports pitch, 4 court multi use games area with floodlighting, 
a grass cycle circuit and cycle challenges on an existing sports field adjacent to Ursuline 
College, but on land owned by the adjacent King Ethelbert School.  This application 
(TH/11/587) was approved in February 2012.  Since this time Ursuline College have 
been in discussions with King Ethelbert School regarding the lease terms for the site, 
but have been unable to come to a suitable lease agreement to justify the investment 
required for the project.   

 

Page 13

Agenda Item D1



Item D1 
New artificial sports pitch and alterations to existing MUGA at 
Ursuline College, Westgate-On-Sea – TH/14/0826  
 

D1.2 

General Location Plan 
 
 
 

Objector’s property 

Page 14



Item D1 
New artificial sports pitch and alterations to existing MUGA at 
Ursuline College, Westgate-On-Sea – TH/14/0826  
 

D1.3 

Site Layout Plan 
 

 
 

Page 15



Item D1 
New artificial sports pitch and alterations to existing MUGA at 
Ursuline College, Westgate-On-Sea – TH/14/0826  
 

D1.4 

MUGA Layout 
 

 
 
Artificial Pitch Layout 

 

Page 16



Item D1 
New artificial sports pitch and alterations to existing MUGA at 
Ursuline College, Westgate-On-Sea – TH/14/0826  
 

D1.5 

Proposed Sections 
 

Page 17



Item D1 
New artificial sports pitch and alterations to existing MUGA at 
Ursuline College, Westgate-On-Sea – TH/14/0826  
 

D1.6 

They have therefore considered other options, and recently agreed a 20-year lease 
between the Diocese (Southwark) and the Trustees of the school site for the grassed 
area of land which is the subject of this planning application (see the attached site plan).  
This area of land is currently used as grassed social space for the students, but has in 
the past been used as tennis courts (from 1949 through to 1998), however always on an 
informal basis.  The need for the lease has come about in readiness for the School’s 
conversion to an Academy later in the year. 

 
Recent Site History 
 
6. The most relevant recent site history is listed below: 

 
TH/11/587 – New artificial sports pitch and 4 court Multi Use Games Area (MUGA) with 
floodlighting, grass cycle circuit and cycle challenges.  
Granted 21/02/2012 

 
TH/05/1341 - Proposed 6 badminton court sports hall and climbing wall.   
Granted 22/03/2006 

 
Proposal 
 
7. The existing MUGA is no longer fit for purpose as it does not comply with current Sport 

England requirements, and this limits the School’s use of the space for competitive 
fixtures and training.  It is therefore proposed to renovate the MUGA in its current 
location to provide three netball courts and four tennis courts (set out in accordance with 
the specifications for pitch size given by Sport England), enclosed by 3m (9.8 feet) high 
fencing.  There would be some areas of cut and fill undertaken for the renovation, to 
ensure the pitches have a maximum fall of 1% (1 in 100) in one direction only.  The 
MUGA would be surfaced in black macadam with coloured line markings appropriate for 
the particular sports. 

 
8. The artificial sports pitch would be sited on the grassed playing field to the east of the 

MUGA and would be constructed with a green sand and rubber 3G surface, in 
accordance with Sport England’s specification.  The artificial pitch would provide 1 mini 
soccer U9/U10 pitch and 2 mini-soccer U7/U8 pitches, all to Football Association 
Standard.  The U9/U10 pitch would be oriented east-west whilst the two U7/U8 pitches 
would be oriented north/south.  The pitches would be enclosed with 1.1m (3.6 feet) high 
square weldmesh fencing, which is proposed to be coloured green with kickboards. 

 
9. There would be small areas of banking round the edge of the sports pitch, which would 

be grassed.  Short areas of footpaths would also be provided to access the new sports 
pitch, with a black macadam finish, to facilitate disabled access. 

 
10. There would not be any floodlighting for the MUGA or sports pitches. 
 
11. The proposed facilities are planned to be used out of core school hours for school 

related activities and community use.  Out of hours use would be from 4pm-8pm during 
the months of April to October, and during school holiday periods and weekends from 
9am-5pm.  The facilities would not be open to the public on a ‘pay and play’ basis but 
rather would be used to enhance the existing community usage of the facilities – many 
of whom already use the school’s sports hall and would simply transfer their activities 
outside. 

Page 18



Item D1 
New artificial sports pitch and alterations to existing MUGA at 
Ursuline College, Westgate-On-Sea – TH/14/0826  
 

D1.7 

12. The land to be used for the new artificial sports pitch does not currently form any 
formally laid out playing field – the school’s playing fields are located elsewhere within 
the school site. 

 
Planning Policy  
 
13. The most relevant Government Guidance and Development Plan Policies summarised 

below are pertinent to the consideration of this application: 
 

(i) National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) March 2012 and the National 
Planning Policy Guidance (March 2014), sets out the Government’s planning policy 
guidance for England, at the heart of which is a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development.  The guidance is a material consideration for the determination of 
planning applications but does not change the statutory status of the development 
plan which remains the starting point for decision making.  However the weight given 
to development plan policies will depend on their consistency with the NPPF (the 
closer the policies in the development plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater 
the weight that may be given).  

 
In determining applications the NPPF states that local planning authorities should 
look for solutions rather than problems, and decision takers at every level should 
seek to approve applications for sustainable development where possible. 
 
In terms of delivering sustainable development in relation to this development 
proposal, the NPPF guidance and objectives covering the following matters are of 
particular relevance: 
 
- Consideration of whether the opportunities for sustainable transport have 

been taken up and safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all 
people; 

- Achieving the requirement for high quality design and a good standard of 
amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings; 

- The great importance that the Government attaches to ensuring that a 
sufficient choice of school places is available to meet the needs of existing 
and new communities, and that great weight should be given to the need to 
create, expand or alter schools. 

- That access to high quality open spaces and opportunities for sport and 
recreation are important in their contribution to health and well-being, and 
therefore that existing open space, sports and recreation facilities should not 
be built on unless the loss would be replaced by equivalent or better provision 
in terms of quantity and quality. 

 
(ii) Policy Statement – Planning for Schools Development (15 August 2011) which 

sets out the Government’s commitment to support the development of state-funded 
schools and their delivery through the planning system. 

 
(ii) Thanet Local Plan (2006) 

 
Policy D1  All new development is required to provide high quality and inclusive 

design, sustainability, layout and materials.  
 
Policy D2  Development proposals will be well landscaped and maximise the 

Page 19



Item D1 
New artificial sports pitch and alterations to existing MUGA at 
Ursuline College, Westgate-On-Sea – TH/14/0826  
 

D1.8 

nature conservation opportunities wherever possible.  
 
Policy HE12  Archaeological sites will be preserved and protected.  
 
Policy CC1  Within the countryside, new development will not be permitted unless 

there is a need for the development that overrides the need to protect 
the countryside.  

 
Policy CC5  Within the Green Wedge new development will not be permitted 

unless it can be demonstrated that the development is not detrimental 
or contrary to the stated aims of the Policy. New development that is 
permitted should make a positive contribution to the area in terms of 
siting, design, scale and use of materials. Open sports and 
recreational uses will be permitted subject to their being no overriding 
conflict with other policies and the wider objectives of the plan.  

 
Policy CF1  Planning permission will be granted for new community facilities if the 

proposals are not contrary to other Local Plan policies and the 
community use and location are demonstrated as acceptable.  

 
Policy SR1  Proposals for the provision of new sports facilities including those 

provided by Schools, particularly where these proposals are available 
to the public will be permitted provided the location of the proposal is 
within or adjoining the urban areas, the intended use of compatible 
with surrounding land uses, the facilities are well related to the major 
transportation network and close to public transport, any built 
development is at an appropriate scale, design and siting, and that 
satisfactory arrangements are made for vehicular access and parking. 

 
Policy SR3 Proposals for the multiple use of existing facilities and new 

development which will create opportunities for recreational use by the 
public additional to the existing use of the facilities will normally be 
permitted.  

 
Policy SR12  Built development will not be permitted on playing fields if it would be 

detrimental to the character of the area. Moreover, no development will 
be permitted on land last used as playing field unless there are 
exceptional circumstances, including, amongst others: if the proposed 
development is for an indoor or outdoor sports facility, the provision of 
which would be of sufficient benefit to sport and recreation as to 
outweigh the detriment caused by the loss of the playing field.  

 
Policy TR12  Substantial development generating travel demand will be required to 

provide convenient and secure cycle parking and changing facilities.  
 
Policy TR15 Development proposals likely to generate significant travel demand 

and/or traffic movement will be required to demonstrate, through 
Green Travel Plans, specific measures to encourage and facilitate the 
use of walking, cycling and public transport in preference to private car 
travel.  

 
Policy TR16  Proposals for development will be required to make satisfactory 

Page 20



Item D1 
New artificial sports pitch and alterations to existing MUGA at 
Ursuline College, Westgate-On-Sea – TH/14/0826  
 

D1.9 

provision for the parking of vehicles (including, where appropriate, 
service vehicles). 

Consultations 
 
14. Thanet District Council considers that the principle of the proposal is acceptable in 

relation to the relevant policies of the Thanet Local Plan, but requests that the findings 
of the Noise Impact Assessment submitted with the application are verified, and if 
necessary appropriate conditions attached, to protect the residential amenities of the 
neighbouring properties. 

 
Kent County Council’s Noise Consultants (AMEY) have advised that the predicted 
ambient noise levels that would result from the proposed sports uses would fall within 
the World Health Organisation guideline level for this type of activity, and would 
therefore be acceptable in relation to the residential amenity of the occupants of 
neighbouring properties. 
 
The County Council’s Biodiversity Officer is satisfied with the information provided in 
the Ecological Appraisal. 

 
County Archaeological Officer raises no objection subject to a condition securing a 
programme of archaeological work. 

 
The County Council’s Landscape Officer has no concerns about the MUGA from a 
landscape impact, subject to the imposition of conditions, and the suggestion that the 
fencing need not be green, but that a standard dark grey would be more appropriate. 

 
Sport England has written to advise that they are satisfied that the development meets 
the Sport England exception policy E5, and this being the case they raise no objection 
subject to the imposition of a condition requiring the submission of a community use 
agreement. 

 
Kent County Council Highways andTransportation raise no objection subject to the 
imposition of various conditions. 

 
Local Member 
 
15. The local County Member, Mr Jeffrey Elenor was notified of the application on 4th 

September, but no comments have been received to date. 
 
Publicity 
 
16. The application was publicised by the posting of a site notice along the southern 

boundary of the site, and the individual notification of 53 residential properties. 
 
Representations 
 
17. In response to the publicity, 1 letter of representation has been received.  The key 

points raised can be summarised as follows: 
 
 The proposals would increase in noise pollution in a residential area 
 The proposals would particularly affect shift workers 
  Shouting from teachers and screaming from children will far exceed the decibel 

Page 21



Item D1 
New artificial sports pitch and alterations to existing MUGA at 
Ursuline College, Westgate-On-Sea – TH/14/0826  
 

D1.10 

levels stated in the application details. 
 

(The location of the objector’s property is highlighted on the attached site plan.) 
 
Discussion 
 
18. In considering this proposal regard must be had to the Development Plan Policies 

outlined in paragraph 14 above. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act (2004) states that applications must be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Therefore the 
proposal needs to be considered in the context of the Development Plan Policies, 
Government Guidance and other material planning considerations arising from 
consultation and publicity.  In my opinion, the key material planning considerations 
relate to the principle of the development in land classed as ‘green wedge’ and 
‘countryside’; the layout, design of the pitches and impact of the fencing; the amenity 
considerations for neighbouring properties due to noise disturbance; and the highway 
and traffic implications of the use of the pitches outside of school hours.   

 
Principle of Development 
 
19. Although the development site is located within land classified as being ‘green wedge’ 

and ‘countryside’ in the Thanet Local Plan, it is intrinsically part of the established 
Ursuline School site and also located amongst built residential development, and south 
of the main A28 dual carriageway.  It does not form any open agricultural land, which 
needs to be protected in the spirit of the wording of the policies (as outlined above) from 
coalescence of built development.  The proposal is for open sports and recreational 
uses, which Policy CC5 permits, within the school envelope and as such it is considered 
that the principle of this development does not conflict with the aims of Policies CC1 and 
CC5.  

 
20. Policy SR1 of the Thanet Local Plan states that proposals for new sports facilities 

including those provided by schools, particularly where these proposals are available to 
the public will be permitted provided the location of the proposal is within or adjoining 
the urban areas; the intended use is compatible with surrounding land uses; the facilities 
are well related to the major transportation network and close to public transport; any 
built development is at an appropriate scale, design and siting; and that satisfactory 
arrangements are made for vehicular access and parking.  In this case it is considered 
that the proposal meets the aims of Policy SR1 in that it adjoins the defined urban area, 
would be compatible with the surrounding education facilities and establishments, it 
being well located in terms of access from the A28 and the public transport options that 
also use this route, and that there would be no ‘built development’ other than the 
required fencing. 

 
21. Thanet District Council has reiterated this view in their response to KCC, where no 

objection has been raised to the principle of development in light of the aforementioned 
policies. 

 

Page 22



Item D1 
New artificial sports pitch and alterations to existing MUGA at 
Ursuline College, Westgate-On-Sea – TH/14/0826  
 

D1.11 

Layout, design and impact of fencing 
 
22. The existing MUGA is simply to be refurbished in its original setting, and as such the 

impact of this development is considered to be minimal, given no significant change in 
its use.  The School propose to reuse the perimeter fencing as far as possible at a 
height of 3m (9.8 feet), and the resurfacing of the area, combined with the artificial pitch 
development can only serve to improve and enhance the appearance of the MUGA in 
this area.   

 
23. The area to the east, which would be used for the artificial pitch, is currently simply 

mown and maintained as a grassed field.  The artificial pitch would require the minor re-
grading of the field to achieve the required level, which would result in the eastern and 
northern edges of the pitch being built up with a grassed bank, which at the greatest 
point would be 1.5m (4.9 feet) above the existing field level.  The fencing around the 
pitch would be to a height of 1.5m (4.9 feet) only. 

 
24. The artificial pitch would be set behind the existing perimeter fencing and tree/hedge 

screening along Linksfield Road and given that there would be no change in levels 
along this southern edge of the pitch it is considered that the new sports field would 
have an extremely limited visual impact on the surrounding residential area.  The school 
boundary treatment would by far exceed the height of the proposed pitch-side fence, 
and even with the additional height from the areas of re-graded land, it is considered 
that the impact of the wire mesh fence would be minimal, due to its very open nature. 

 
Amenity considerations due to noise impact 
 
25. The proposed MUGA and artificial pitch would be located within an existing school site, 

where there is already a degree of noise pollution to be expected by those residents 
living in close proximity to the area.  In addition to use during school hours, the new 
sports facilities are proposed to be available outside of school hours as well.  No 
floodlighting has been proposed with this current application, as a result of discussions 
with other site users (whereas the previously approved scheme in 2012 did involve 
floodlighting), therefore the hours of use are limited to those of daylight and are thus 
proposed to be 4pm-8pm weekday evenings in the months of April to October, and from 
9am to 5pm at the weekends and during school holiday periods. 

 
26. An hours of use condition is proposed to ensure that the MUGA and artificial pitch are 

only used during the hours set out above to protect the amenities of the occupants of 
neighbouring properties. 

 
27. The application has been accompanied by a Noise Impact Assessment, which has 

simulated the worst-case operational scenario of the use of the proposed artificial pitch 
on nearby noise receptors located in Golden Close, Linksfield Road and Warren Drive 
(i.e. the east, south and west of the proposed pitch).  This has been achieved by 
applying the worst-case noise levels recorded from the MUGA use and applying it to the 
proposed artificial pitch.  The calculated noise levels have then been assessed against 
the outdoor levels recommended by the World Health Organisation (WHO) Guidelines 
for Community Noise.  These guidelines state that to protect the majority of people from 
being seriously annoyed during the daytime, the sound level on balconies, terraces and 
outdoor living areas should not exceed 55db LAeq for a steady continuous noise.  The 
Noise Impact Assessment concludes that the proposed development, based on the 
simulated calculations carried out, would not exceed this level and therefore no 
additional noise mitigation measures are proposed or considered necessary. 

Page 23



Item D1 
New artificial sports pitch and alterations to existing MUGA at 
Ursuline College, Westgate-On-Sea – TH/14/0826  
 

D1.12 

28. One letter of objection has been received raising concerns over the likely noise the use 
would generate and the accuracy of the findings in the report submitted by the School.  
In order to ensure the validity of the report findings and that the impact on neighbouring 
residents has been properly assessed, the Council’s own Noise Consultants were asked 
to comment on the application.  As a result of this further information was sought from 
the applicant to verify that the type of sports use on the artificial pitch had been properly 
evaluated (i.e. the noise associated with football and rugby rather than the noise 
associated with tennis or netball).  The findings again showed that the noise levels 
would fall below the World Health organisation guideline of 55dB, and as a result that no 
mitigation measures would be necessary. 

 
29. Furthermore it should be noted that the objector’s property lies further away from the 

proposed artificial pitch than the closest noise receptor used in the submitted report.  
The Council’s noise consultants have confirmed that properties located further away 
from the receptors would generally experience a lower level of noise (attributable to the 
activities taking place on the sports pitch), therefore the noise levels experienced by the 
objector would again be lower than those already shown to be within the WHO 
guidelines.  The proposed sports uses in my view would therefore be acceptable in 
relation to the residential amenity of neighbouring residential occupants. 

 
Highway and Traffic Implications 
 
30. Access for users of the proposed pitches would be via the existing school entrance and 

exit points from the A28, Canterbury Road.  The school currently has 60 parking spaces 
on site, 3 of which are used for minibuses.  When the pitches are used outside of school 
hours the existing school parking would be available for use, and this includes the out of 
school hours parking in front of the St Ursula building which is also used by the Sports 
Centre.  25 cycle spaces are available adjacent to the sports centre on the main site.  
There is a frequent bus service along the A28 for those using public transport and 
Westgate-On-Sea railway station is a 15 minute walk from the school. 

 
31. KCC Highways and Transportation officers have considered the application and have 

raised no objection to the scheme subject to the imposition of conditions covering the 
submission of details for the parking of construction vehicles and site 
personnel/operatives throughout the construction period; that room be made on site for 
the loading and unloading of construction vehicles; that car parking within the school 
site be made available to users of the new sports facilities; and that no pedestrian 
access to the sports pitch be provided from Linksfield Road to the south, in order to 
prevent any parking taking place on this residential road. 

 
32. It is therefore considered that subject to these conditions the scheme would be 

acceptable and in accordance with Policies TR12 and TR16 of the Thanet Local Plan. 
 
Other Matters 
 

Landscape and Ecological Matters 
 
33. The County Council’s landscape officer has commented that the site is well screened 

from adjacent roads and neighbouring properties and that the visual impact of the 
development would be minimal.  They have suggested that the need for the fence to be 
green is unnecessary, as the artificial green colour fails to blend in with the 
surroundings, and suggest that a less visible dark grey colour would be preferable.  That 
colour treatment could be covered by a condition. 

Page 24



Item D1 
New artificial sports pitch and alterations to existing MUGA at 
Ursuline College, Westgate-On-Sea – TH/14/0826  
 

D1.13 

34. A number of small trees would be removed from the site to enable the refurbishment of 
the MUGA, and this has been set out in the submitted Arboricultural Report.  Should the 
application be approved, a condition has been suggested that requires the works to be 
carried out in accordance with this report and that any trees that are removed are 
replaced elsewhere on the site. 

 
35. An Ecological Appraisal also accompanied the application, which addressed protected 

species such as reptiles, bats, breeding birds, badgers, hedgehogs and toads.  There is 
a small building close to the sports hall, MUGA and grassed space which has the 
potential for roosting bats, but the applicants have confirmed that this building would not 
be removed or affected by the development.  As no floodlighting is proposed there 
would be limited potential for the foraging or commuting of bats to be affected by the 
development. 

 
36. As the site is suitable for both reptiles and breeding birds, the County Council’s 

Ecologist has advised that any works should be carried out in accordance with the 
mitigation set out in the Appraisal, and this can be covered by a condition should 
permission be granted. 

 
37. The Appraisal also suggested that a 2m buffer strip be created around the boundary of 

the site and enhanced for biodiversity, in accordance with the aims of the NPPF and 
again that could be secured via a condition. 

 
Archaeological Impact 

 
38. The site lies in an area of known important prehistoric remains including Bronze Age 

barrows and Iron Age and later activity.  Extensive archaeological remains were located 
during formal archaeological works by Trust for Thanet Archaeology in 2011 and 2012 
but this work did not include the site currently covered by this application which lies to 
the south of the areas previously investigated.  It is therefore possible that development 
would affect archaeological remains and therefore the County’s Archaeologist has 
requested that a condition be imposed on any consent given for a programme of 
archaeological work to be carried out to ensure that any features of archaeological 
interest are properly examined and recorded.  With the imposition of such a condition it 
is considered that the development would accord with the aims of Policy HE12 of the 
Thanet Local Plan. 

 
Sport England 

 
39. Sport England were consulted on the planning application and have advised that the 

proposed development would meet policy exception E5, in that the development would 
be “…for an indoor or outdoor sports facility, the provision of which would be of sufficient 
benefit to the development of sport as to outweigh the detriment caused by the loss of 
the playing field or playing fields.”  Under the circumstances, they raise no objection to 
the application subject to the imposition of a condition to ensure a community use 
agreement be put in place. 

 
Construction Matters 

 
40. Given that there are neighbouring residential properties, if planning permission is 

granted I consider that it is appropriate to impose a condition restricting hours of 
construction to protect residential amenity (Monday to Friday between 0800 and 1800; 
Saturday 0900 to 1300; and no operations on Sundays or public holidays).  

Page 25



Item D1 
New artificial sports pitch and alterations to existing MUGA at 
Ursuline College, Westgate-On-Sea – TH/14/0826  
 

D1.14 

41. Should permission be granted a condition requiring the submission of a full Construction 
Management Strategy prior to commencement of development is considered 
appropriate. That should include details of how the site access would be managed 
(especially during school hours), details of the methods and hours of working, location 
of site compounds and operative/visitor parking, details of site security and safety 
measures, lorry waiting and wheel washing facilities and details of any construction 
access.  

 
42. In addition to the above, should permission be granted, I consider that a further 

condition to ensure that dust and mud are not deposited on the highway would also be 
appropriate, to minimise disruption to local residents.  

 
Conclusion 
 
43. The application has been considered on its own merits and in the light of the NPPF, the 

Planning for Schools Development Policy Statement and the Development Plan, and 
comments received raising concerns about the potential noise disturbance. I consider 
that the proposed MUGA and artificial sports pitch would be acceptable in terms of its 
layout on site, the appearance of the fencing and artificial surfaces. The site would be 
easily accessible via a good highway network, and the out of hours use would be limited 
to the hours of daylight, without any floodlighting.  The predicted noise levels have been 
shown to fall within the WHO guidelines and the scheme would therefore not cause any 
disturbance to the residential amenity of the neighbouring residents.  I therefore 
consider that the development accords with the principles of sustainable development 
as set out in the NPPF.  

 
44. Therefore, subject to the imposition of conditions, I consider that the development would 

not give rise to any material harm, and is otherwise in accordance with the general aims 
and objectives of the relevant Development Plan Policies, the Planning Statement and 
the guidance contained in the NPPF, and that permission should therefore be granted. 

 
Recommendation 
 
45. I RECOMMEND that PERMISSION BE GRANTED SUBJECT TO the imposition of 

conditions covering (amongst other matters) the following: 
 

 The standard 5 year time limit;  
 The development to be carried out in accordance with the permitted details;  
 The submission and approval of details of the colour of the fencing to be used; 
 The protection of the trees to be retained; 
 The replanting of trees on site to compensate for those removed; 
 The development being carried out in accordance with the ecological mitigation 

strategy including the provision of the buffer strip for biodiversity; 
 The ‘out of school’ hours use of the MUGA and Artificial Pitch be restricted to 

4pm to 8pm Monday to Friday during the months of April to October inclusive 
and from 9am to 5pm on weekends and during school holidays; 

 No pedestrian access to the sports pitch be permitted from Linksfield Road; 
 Car parking within the school site be made available out of school hours for the 

wider community use; 
 Measures to be taken to prevent mud and debris being deposited on the public 

highway;  

Page 26



Item D1 
New artificial sports pitch and alterations to existing MUGA at 
Ursuline College, Westgate-On-Sea – TH/14/0826  
 

D1.15 

 Hours of working during construction to be restricted to between the hours of 
0800 and 1800 Monday to Friday and between the hours of 0900 and 1300 on 
Saturdays, with no operations on Sundays or Bank Holidays;  

 The submission of a Construction Management Plan, providing details of access, 
parking and circulation within the site for contractors, site personnel and other 
operatives & management of the site access to avoid peak school times;  

 The submission and approval of details of a Community Use Agreement in 
consultation with Sport England; 

  The implementation of a programme of archaeological work, to be submitted and 
approved in writing. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Case Officer: Helen Edwards Tel. no: 03000 413366 

Background documents: See section heading 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



E1 COUNTY MATTER APPLICATIONS AND DETAILS PURSUANT 
PERMITTED/APPROVED/REFUSED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS - 
MEMBERS’ INFORMATION   

     
                                                                                         
 
Since the last meeting of the Committee, the following matters have been determined by me  
under delegated powers:- 
 
Background Documents - The deposited documents. 
 
SW/14/502217  Proposed change of use of Pioneer Building from storage to 

production in connection with WEEE waste electronic 
equipment recycling plus recladding the building. 

    SWEEEP Kuusakoski Ltd, Gas Road, Sittingbourne 
 
TM/05/723/MR88/RVAR Request for approval of revised restoration scheme and 

aftercare scheme pursuant to conditions (38) and (46) of 
planning permission TM/05/723/MR88. 

    Postern Park Quarry, Hadlow Road, Tonbridge 
 
 
 
E2 COUNTY COUNCIL DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS AND DETAILS 

PURSUANT PERMITTED/APPROVED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 
MEMBERS’ INFORMATION 

 
    __________________________________________ _______                                                                                  
 
Since the last meeting of the Committee, the following matters have been determined by me 
under delegated powers:- 
 
Background Documents – The deposited documents. 
 
AS/12/1340/R12  Details of a scheme to deal with the risks associated with 

contamination of the site pursuant to condition (12) of 
planning  permission AS/12/1340. 

    The John Wallis Church of England Academy, Millbank Road, 
Kingsnorth 

 
AS/14/1221   Construction of a canopy on the east facing elevation of the 

school. 
    Repton Manor Primary School, Repton Avenue, Ashford 
 
CA/14/1911    Renewal of planning permission for temporary classrooms. 
     Simon Langton Grammar School for Boys, Langton Lane, 

Canterbury 
 
DA/13/1701/R14 & R22  Details pursuant to conditions 14 (external lighting) and 22 

(photovoltaic roof panels) of planning permission DA/13/1701 
for a replacement extra care apartment building. 

     Manorbrooke Residential Home, Bevis Close, Dartford 
 
 

E.1 
Page 29

Agenda Item E1



DA/13/1703/R3&R11    Details of external materials and construction management 
strategy pursuant to conditions (3) and (11) of planning 
permission DA/13/1703. 

     Stone C of E Primary School, Hayes Road, Greenhithe 
 
DO/13/1114/R19   Details of luminaire schedule pursuant to condition (19) of 

planning consent DO/13/1114. 
     Cornfields, Cranleigh Drive, Whitfield, Dover 
 
DO/14/521/RVAR   Details of external materials, fencing and construction 

management strategy, pursuant to conditions (3), (5) and (11) 
of planning permission DO/14/521. 

     Land adjoining the Deal Leisure Centre, Tides, Park Avenue, 
Deal 

 
SE/14/3208    Planning renewal for the existing mobile classroom unit. 
     Downsview Primary School, Beech Avenue, Swanley 
 
TH/14/1006   Proposed installation of a set of black powder-coated metal 

gates at the buildings front entrance enclosure. 
    Aberdeen House, Ellington Road, Ramsgate 
 
TW/13/2697/R3   Details of School Travel Plan pursuant to condition (3) of 

planning permission TW/13/2697. 
     The Skinners School, St Johns Road, Tunbridge Wells 
 
TW/14/154/R4    Details of; surfacing, colour finish and drainage of the Parish 

Council car parking areas to be re-surfaced pursuant to 
condition (4) of planning permission TW/14/154. 

     Langton Green Primary school, Lampington Row, Langton 
Green, Tunbridge Wells 

 
 
 
E3 TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT  

ASSESSMENT) REGULATIONS 2011 – SCREENING OPINIONS 
ADOPTED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 

 
                                                                          
 
Background Documents –  
 
• The deposited documents. 
• Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011. 
• DETR Circular 02/99 – Environmental Impact Assessment. 
 
(a) Since the last meeting of the Committee the following screening opinions have been  

adopted under delegated powers that the proposed development does not constitute 
EIA development and the development proposal does not need to be accompanied 
by an Environmental Statement:-  
 
KCC/AS/0365/2014 - Alterations and refurbishment of existing pool changing rooms.  
Rolvenden Primary School, Hastings Road, Rolvenden, Cranbrook 

 
E.2 

Page 30



 
KCC/DO/0354/2014 – Change of use of the land to extend the waste storage 
facilities at East Kent Waste Recovery Facility, River Road, Discovery Park, 
Sandwich 
 
KCC/DO/0382/2014 - Demolition of existing buildings, erection of a three storey 
replacement school building, with associated games court, parking, access and hard 
and soft landscaping at Portal House School, Sea Street, St. Margarets-At-Cliffe, 
Dover 

 
KCC/TM/0363/2014 – Section 73 application to vary conditions (4) and (5) of 
planning permission TM/92/358 to increase volume of liquid to be treated and 
associated vehicle numbers at Ham Hill Wastewater Treatment Works, Brook Lane, 
Snodland 

 
(b) Since the last meeting of the Committee the following screening opinions have been  

adopted under delegated powers that the proposed development does constitute EIA 
development and the development proposal does need to be accompanied by an 
Environmental Statement:-  
 
None 

 
 
 
E4 TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

ASSESSMENT) REGULATIONS 2011 – SCOPING OPINIONS ADOPTED 
UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 

 
                                                                             
 
(b) Since the last meeting of the Committee the following scoping opinions have been 

adopted under delegated powers.  
 
Background Documents -  
 
• The deposited documents. 
• Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011. 
• DETR Circular 02/99 - Environmental Impact Assessment. 
 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E.3 
Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A3 Minutes - 19 November 2014
	D1 Proposal TH/14/0826 (KCC/TH/0281/2014) - Construction of a new artificial sports pitch and alterations to existing multi-use games area (MUGA) at Ursuline College, Canterbury Road, Westgate-on-Sea; Governors of Ursuline College
	E1 County matter applications

